
 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
TUESDAY, MARCH 12, 2019 

REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

6:30 PM 
 

 

Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Announcements 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 

Consent Agenda 
1. Regular Minutes February 12, 2019 

Regular Minutes February 26, 2019 

Western Slope Conservation Center - Special Event - 3/28/19 - Edesia 

Mayor’s Report 

Staff Reports 
Town Administrators Report 

     2.   Water System Update 

Public Works Report 

Police Department Report 

Town Treasurer Report 

Disbursements 

Unfinished Business 
3. Personnel Handbook Sections 202 & 209 Amendment – Access to Personnel Files and Medical 

Information Privacy 

New Business 
4. PUBLIC HEARING: 397 Clark Avenue A – Special Use 

5. Revised Preliminary Environmental Assessment for the North Fork Mancos Master Development Plan 

Committee Reports 
Finance & Personnel 

Public Works/Utilities/Facilities 

Governmental Affairs/Public Safety 

Space to Create 

Tree Board 

Executive Session 
6. Town Administrator Review 

Adjournment 
 

  

1



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

AS ADOPTED BY: 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 – Amended May 22, 2018 

 

I. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

Section 1.  Schedule of Meetings.  Regular Board of Trustees meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each 

month, except on legal holidays, or as re-scheduled or amended and posted on the agenda prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 

Section 2.  Officiating Officer.  The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted by the Mayor or, in the Mayor’s 

absence, the Mayor Pro-Tem.  The Town Clerk or a designee of the Board shall record the minutes of the meetings. 

 

Section 3.  Time of Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall begin at 6:30 p.m. or as scheduled and posted on 

the agenda. Board Members shall be called to order by the Mayor.  The meetings shall open with the presiding officer leading 

the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  The Town Clerk shall then proceed to call the roll, note the absences and announce 

whether a quorum is present.  Regular Meetings are scheduled for three hours, and shall be adjourned at 9:30 p.m., unless a 

majority of the Board votes in the affirmative to extend the meeting, by a specific amount of time.  

 

Section 4. Schedule of Business.  If a quorum is present, the Board of Trustees shall proceed with the business before it, which 

shall be conducted in the following manner.  Note that all provided times are estimated:  

 

 (a) Roll Call - (5 minutes) 

 (b) Approval of Agenda - (5 minutes) 

 (c) Announcements (5 minutes) 

 (d) Recognition of Visitors and Guests (10 minutes) 

 (e) Consent Agenda including Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes (10 minutes) 

 (f) Mayor’s Report (10 minutes) 

 (g) Staff Reports: (15 minutes) 

  (1) Town Administrator’s Report 

  (2) Public Works Reports  

  (3) Police Report 

  (4) Treasurer Report 

      

 (h) Unfinished Business (45 minutes) 

 (i) New Business (45 minutes) 

 (j) Disbursements (15 minutes) 

 (k) Committee Reports (15 minutes) 

 (l) Adjournment 

 

  * This schedule of business is subject to change and amendment. 

  

Section 5. Priority and Order of Business. Questions relative to the priority of business and order shall be decided by the 

Mayor without debate, subject in all cases to an appeal to the Board of Trustees.  

 

Section 6.  Conduct of Board Members.   Town Board Members shall treat other Board Members and the public in a civil and 

polite manner and shall comply with the Standards of Conduct for Elected Officials of the Town.  Board Members shall 

address Town Staff and the Mayor by his/her title, other Board Members by the title of Trustee or the appropriate honorific 

(i.e.: Mr., Mrs. or Ms.), and members of the public by the appropriate honorific.  Subject to the Mayor’s discretion, Board 

Members shall be limited to speaking two times when debating an item on the agenda.  Making a motion, asking a question or 

making a suggestion are not counted as speaking in a debate.  

 

Section 7. Presentations to the Board.  Items on the agenda presented by individuals, businesses or other organizations shall be 

given up to 5 minutes to make a presentation.  On certain issues, presenters may be given more time, as determined by the 

Mayor and Town Staff.  After the presentation, Trustees shall be given the opportunity to ask questions. 

 

Section 8. Public Comment.  After discussion of an agenda item by the Board of Trustees has concluded, the Mayor shall open 

the floor for comment from members of the public, who shall be allowed the opportunity to comment or ask questions on the 

agenda item.  Each member of the public wishing to address the Town Board shall be recognized by the presiding officer 

before speaking.  Members of the public shall speak from the podium, stating their name, the address of their residence and 

any group they are representing prior to making comment or asking a question.  Comments shall be directed to the Mayor or 

presiding officer, not to an individual Trustee or Town employee.  Comments or questions should be confined to the agenda 

2



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

item or issue(s) under discussion.  The speaker should offer factual information and refrain from obscene language and 

personal attacks. 

 

Section 9.  Unacceptable Behavior. Disruptive behavior shall result in expulsion from the meeting.   

 

Section 10.  Posting of Rules of Procedure for Paonia Board of Trustees Meetings. These rules of procedure shall be provided 

in the Town Hall meeting room for each Board of Trustees meeting so that all attendees know how the meeting will be 

conducted. 

 

II. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Section 1. Use of Consent Agenda. The Mayor, working with Town Staff, shall place items on the Consent Agenda. By using a 

Consent Agenda, the Board has consented to the consideration of certain items as a group under one motion. Should a 

Consent Agenda be used at a meeting, an appropriate amount of discussion time will be allowed to review any item upon 

request.  

Section 2. General Guidelines. Items for consent are those which usually do not require discussion or explanation prior to 

action by the Board, are non-controversial and/or similar in content, or are those items which have already been discussed or 

explained and do not require further discussion or explanation. Such agenda items may include ministerial tasks such as, but 

not limited to, approval of previous meeting minutes, approval of staff reports, addressing routine correspondence, approval 

of liquor licenses renewals and approval or extension of other Town licenses. Minor changes in the minutes such as non-

material Scribner errors may be made without removing the minutes from the Consent Agenda.  Should any Trustee feel there 

is a material error in the minutes, they should request the minutes be removed from the Consent Agenda for Board discussion. 

Section 3. Removal of Item from Consent Agenda. One or more items may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a timely 

request of any Trustee. A request is timely if made prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda. The request does not require a 

second or a vote by the Board. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will then be discussed and acted on separately 

either immediately following the consideration of the Consent Agenda or placed later on the agenda, at the discretion of the 

Board.  

 

III.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Section 1.  An executive session may only be called at a regular or special Board meeting where official action may be taken 

by the Board, not at a work session of the Board.  To convene an executive session, the Board shall announce to the public in 

the open meeting the topic to be discussed in the executive session, including specific citation to the statute authorizing the 

Board to meet in an executive session and identifying the particular matter to be discussed “in as much detail as possible 

without compromising the purpose for which the executive session is authorized.” In the even the Board plans to discuss more 

than one of the authorized topics in the executive session, each should be announced, cited and described. Following the 

announcement of the intent to convene an executive session, a motion must then be made and seconded.  In order to go into 

executive session, there must be the affirmative vote of two thirds (2/3) of Members of the Board. 

 

Section 2.  During executive session, minutes or notes of the deliberations should not be taken. Since meeting minutes are 

subject to inspection under the Colorado Open Records Act, the keeping of minutes would defeat the private nature of 

executive session. In addition, the deliberations carried out during executive session should not be discussed outside of that 

session or with individuals not participating in the session.  The contexts of an executive session are to remain confidential 

unless a majority of the Trustees vote to disclose the contents of the executive session. 

 

Section 3.  Once the deliberations have taken place in executive session, the Board should reconvene in regular session to take 

any formal action decided upon during the executive session.  If you have questions regarding the wording of the motion or 

whether any other information should be disclosed on the record, it is essential for you to consult with the Town Attorney on 

these matters. 

 

 

IV. SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT 

 

Section 1. Deviations.  The Board may deviate from the procedures set forth in this Resolution, if, in its sole discretion, such 

deviation is necessary under the circumstances. 

Section 2.  Amendment.   The Board may amend these Rules of Procedures Policy from time to time. 

  

3



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 8, 2019 
 

 

Roll Call 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

4



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 8, 2019 
 

 

Approval of Agenda 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

5



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 8, 2019 
 

 

Announcements 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

6



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 8, 2019 
 

 

Visitors & Guests 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

7



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 8, 2019 
 

 

Consent Agenda 

Summary:   

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

8



DUE TO ISSUES WITH MUNIMEETING THESE ARE ACTION MINUTES ONLY – CF – Town Clerk 

 

  

FEBRUARY 12, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Regular Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

February 12, 2019 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

Roll Call 

 

PRESENT 

Mayor Charles Stewart 

Mayor Pro-Tem Chelsea Bookout 

Trustee Mary Bachran 

Trustee William Bear 

Trustee Karen Budinger 

 

Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Budinger to approve the agenda as 

presented. Motion carried. 

 

Announcements 
1.None 

 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 

 

2.None 

 

Consent Agenda 
3. Minutes – January 22, 2019 

 

4. Special Event License – The Learning Council – March 2, 2019 – Edesia Kitchen 

 

5. Special Event License – Forage Sisters – February 27, 2019 – Edesia Kitchen – This item 

was removed from consent agenda. 

Motion by Trustee Bachran, supported by Trustee Bookout to approve consent agenda as 

amended. Motion carried unanimously. 

Special Event License – Forage Sisters – February 27, 2019 – Edesia Kitchen 

Motion by Trustee Bookout supported by Trustee Bachran to approve the special event as an 

on-premise license. Motion carried unanimously.  

9



DUE TO ISSUES WITH MUNIMEETING THESE ARE ACTION MINUTES ONLY – CF – Town Clerk 

 

  

FEBRUARY 12, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

 

Mayor’s Report 
6. None 

Staff Reports 
Town Administrators Report 

7. None 

Public Works Report 

8. None 

Police Department Report 

9. None 

Town Treasurer Report 

10. None 

Disbursements 
 

Motion by Trustee Bookout supported by Trustee Bachran to approve disbursements as 

presented. Motion carried unanimously.  

Unfinished Business 
12. Ordinance 2019-02 Municipal Code Amendment – Fences, Hedges, & Walls 

 

Motion by Trustee Bookout, supported by Trustee Bachran to adopt Ordinance 2019-02 

Municipal Code Amendment as presented. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

13. Town Administrator Evaluation Schedule 

 

Motion by Trustee Bookout, supported by Trustee Bachran to strike item three from 

procedures. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Motion by Trustee Bookout, supported by Trustee Budinger to approve procedures as 

amended. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Motion by Trustee Bookout, supported by Trustee Bachran to approve forms as presented. 

Motion carried unanimously.  

 

14. Personnel Handbook Sections 202 & 209 Amendment – Access to Personnel Files and 

Medical Information Privacy 

 

Motion by Trustee Bookout, supported by Trustee Bachran to table to next Board meeting. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

New Business 

10



DUE TO ISSUES WITH MUNIMEETING THESE ARE ACTION MINUTES ONLY – CF – Town Clerk 

 

  

FEBRUARY 12, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 3 

 

15. Flying Fork Café – Liquor License Transfer 

 

Motion by Trustee Bear, supported by Trustee Bookout to approve the liquor license transfer 

from the Flying Fork Café, LLC to En Passant, LLC as presented. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

16. Solar Energy International – Colorado Energy Office Grant - Electric Car Charging 

Station  

 

Motion by Trustee Budinger, supported by Trustee Bookout to direct Mayor Stewart to 

endorse a letter of support for the grant application for an electric car charging station in 

the Town of Paonia. 

 

Motion to amend by Trustee Bear, supported by Trustee Bookout contingent upon receipt of 

a letter of understand. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Main amended motion carried unanimously.  

 

17. Resolution 2019-05 2018 Budget Amendment 

 

Motion by Trustee Bookout, supported by Trustee Budinger to adopt Resolution 2019-05 – 

2018 Budget amendment as presented. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

18. Town Fund Changes/Transfer Request 

 

Motion by Trustee Bookout, supported by Trustee Budinger to approve the change and 

transfer requests of Town funds. Motion carried unanimously.  

Committee Reports 
Finance & Personnel 

Public Works/Utilities/Facilities 

Governmental Affairs/Public Safety 

Tree Board 

Adjournment 
19. Adjournment 

 

Motion by Trustee Bear, supported by Trustee Bookout to adjourn. Motion carried 

unanimously.  

  

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

J. Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk                          Charles Stewart, Mayor  

11



 

  

FEBRUARY 26, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Regular Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

February 26, 2019 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

Roll Call 
 

PRESENT 

Mayor Charles Stewart 

Mayor Pro-Tem Chelsea Bookout 

Trustee Mary Bachran 

Trustee William Bear 

Trustee Karen Budinger 

Trustee Samira Hart 

Trustee Dave Knutson 

 

Approval of Agenda 

 

Mayor Stewart provided an overview regarding the water emergency declaration last week as 

well as the water company shut-down due to low tanks.  Mayor Stewart recommended to amend 

the agenda to move the Administrator and Public Works report to follow approval of agenda to 

allow for updating and public questions.   

 

Motion to amend the agenda as presented. Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Seconded 

by Trustee Hart. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee 

Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Motion to approve the amended motion made by Trustee Bear, supported by Trustee Hart. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, 

Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

 

1. Administrator’s Report 

 Administrator Knight provided an overview of the water issues occurring for the water 

users on the Town of Paonia waterlines and a rough timeline of events, including the 

implementation of a system-wide boil order, the locating and repairing of major and 

minor waterline breaks, water testing, and the rescinding of the boil order.  

Administrator Knight noted several entities and individuals who have offered assistance 

to the Town and residents, as well as the team work of staff to address the issues. 

Administrator Knight also offered the reasoning behind the decision to shut-down the 

out-of-town water companies. A public information meeting will be held Thursday night 

at 6pm with a staff update to the community on the situation and circumstances of the 

water issue.  

 

12



 

  

FEBRUARY 26, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

  

2. Public Works Report 

 Public Works Director Loberg expounded on the technical side of the water events 

including a description of detecting, isolating, and repairing of leaks.  Town has 

purchased a leak detection device to allow Town to search and isolate water leaks.  The 

amount of water coming in to the tanks is substantially lower than previous weeks.  Two 

crews are on call to assist with detected leak repairs, so we can address multiple leaks at 

once.  

 

 Discussion ensued regarding usual water production, conservation, spring-line repairs, 

and KVNF coverage. 

 

Trustee Bear asked if out-of-town meters have been checked to isolate leaks. There have 

not been any indicators of leaks on customer side. Believes the leaks are on main lines to 

meters or main trunk lines. 

 

Mayor Stewart added that the decision to turn off out-of-town water was to avoid a 

critical situation again as of last week.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding water production requirements and drought conditions. 

  

Natasha Leger - questioned the differences between what occurred last weeks to this 

week and how the Town plans to obtain and provide raw water.  

 

Thomas Markle - strongly consider changing billing structure for how services are 

provided to town to decrease infrastructure charge and increase use charges.  

 

Kristina Smith - asked for an explanation of the water system.  

 

Mike Lehman - questioned why we can’t shut Town off at night and restore out-of-town 

during the night. - Admin Knight explained the necessity to then place on boil order. 

 

Patricia Oienick - works at the school kitchen, the boil water order did require a large 

amount of dumped water which is counterproductive to conservation. 

 

Lorinda Lehman - questioned why the Town can't turn on water for a few hours.   

 

Discussion ensued regarding the difficulties with turning on and recharging water 

company systems.  

 

Kris Stewart - provided additional information regarding the County assistance to the 

Town. 

 

  

   

Announcements 

13



 

  

FEBRUARY 26, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 3 

 

3. Announcements 

 None.  

 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 

 

Susie Kaldis - Announced that the S2C community meeting will be at Town Hall tomorrow 

evening at 6:30 and asked if the meeting should be cancelled.  

 

Administrator Knight stated the S2C team have done a lot of work and believes the meeting 

should go on.  

 

Natasha Leger - on behalf of CHC - provided information regarding the opportunity to address 

legislative changes for oil and gas in the near future.  

 

Energy Tech approved for the Remote Area Medical clinic for the first weekend in August.  

 

Consent Agenda 
None. 

Mayor’s Report 
4. None. 

Staff Reports 
 

Police Department Report 

5. Oath of Office – Officer Andrew Vassel was welcomed and received his oath of office. 

 The two new patrol vehicles have decals and will be outfitted soon. 

School Resource Officer Taffine Patterson is doing well and has been well-received at 

the schools. Training continues. 

  

Town Treasurer Report 

6. None. 

Disbursements 
7. Disbursements 

 Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Seconded by Trustee Hart to approve 

disbursements as presented. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, 

Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

Unfinished Business 
8. Personnel Handbook Sections 202 & 209 Amendment – Access to Personnel Files and 

Medical Information Privacy 

 Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Seconded by Trustee Hart to table to next 

Board meeting. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, 

Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

 

14



 

  

FEBRUARY 26, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 4 

 

New Business 
9. Delta County Sheriff – Back the Badge Sales Tax Presentation 

 Delta County Sheriff Mark Taylor was present to discuss the county-wide effort 

regarding the Back the Badge public safety initiative. Sheriff Taylor provided 

information regarding the changes facing law enforcement in general. 

 

A slide show presentation ensued.  

 

Opened for Board questions - Chief Ferguson stated a main priority is to retain officers 

and to provide relief to the Town general fund. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding what will be taxed and how the Town will address potential 

shortfalls and additional information that could be provided to help support the effort.  

 

10. Blue Sage Center for the Arts – Letter of Support 

 Debra Muzikar – a Blue Sage representative provided information regarding the Laura 

Jane Musser grant letter of support request.  

 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Bachran to approve the letter of 

support as presented. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee 

Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

 

11. Public Hearing: 401 Vista Drive Home Occupancy 

 Trustee Knutson recused himself from the dais and joined the public to present his 

request for the home occupancy application. 

 

Public Hearing opened at 8:43pm 

 

Administrator Knight presented the staff and planning commission recommendation for 

approval.  

 

Mr. Knutson provided information regarding the necessity for his home-based business. 

 

No public comment. 

 

Closed hearing at 8:48pm. 

  

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Hart to approve the Home-Based 

Occupancy application for Mr. Knutson at 401 Vista Drive as presented. Voting Yea: 

Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee 

Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

 

12. Resolution 2019-07 Retail Liquor Delivery 

 Mayor Stewart provided information regarding the state allowance for liquor licensed 

stores to offer delivery. The Town has no approval or input authority, but the Town can 

add a requirement to provide a copy of the State issued license to the Town.  

15



 

  

FEBRUARY 26, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 5 

 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Hart to approve Resolution 2019-07 

Retail Liquor Delivery as presented. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee 

Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart Voting Nay: Trustee Knutson. 

 

13. CDOT – Title 6 Non-Discrimination Plan 

 Mayor Stewart provided an overview of the CDOT/USDOT federal assistance 

requirement to enact a non-discrimination plan that is in line with the Town non-

discrimination resolution. 

Trustee Knutson requested sexual preference and gender identity be added. 

Trustee Bachran requested religion be added. 

 

Mayor Stewart noted the Federal statute states what classes are protected. 

 

Trustee Hart recommended the Board refer to the Town attorney to review and weigh in.  

Administrator Knight noted he believes as long as the minimum standards are met the 

Town could create additional policy standards.  

 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Bachran to amend the Non-

Discrimination Plan as discussed.  Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee 

Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Bachran to approve the on-

Discrimination Plan as amended. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee 

Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Committee Reports 
Finance & Personnel 

Reviewed disbursements. Nothing additional. 

 

Public Works/Utilities/Facilities 

Met the 19th to discuss a variety of issues including the water issue, waterline extension, 1MG 

tank lining, the 2MG tank lining, funding, a pressure analysis, playground equipment funding, 

teen center roof, and safe routes to school plan.  

 

Governmental Affairs/Public Safety 

Met and discussed the building code update and scheduling a listening session for April 16th 

from 6 to 730pm. Met with NFSIS regarding a plastic bag ban presentation for a potential 

ordinance to give to the Board.  

 

Space to Create 

Received grant funds for a Vista Volunteer application. A potential candidate is Evan Bolt, 

currently volunteering at Town during the S2C application period.  

 

 

 

16



 

  

FEBRUARY 26, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 6 

 

Tree Board 

Tamie Meck has announced her resignation. Several people have reached out with interest and 

will come to Town to present at a later date.  

 

Adjournment 
Motion made by Trustee Hart, Seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, 

Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson 

 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

J. Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk                          Charles Stewart, Mayor  

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 8, 2019 
 

 

Mayor’s Report 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

24



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 11, 2019 
 

 

Administrators Report - Water System Update 

Summary:   

Administrators update regarding the Town water issues and update. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

25



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 8, 2019 
 

 

Public Works Report 

Summary:   

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

26



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 8, 2019 
 

 

Police Report 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

27



rplwlitr.x1

Paonia Police Department
Law Incident Table, by Date and Time

Date Occurred:   02/15/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
14:04:12 Information PPD
16:06:46 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
19:22:28 Traffic Stop

Address
paonia care & rehab, ,
GRAND AVE; PPD, Paonia, CO 
70 SAMUEL WADE RD, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3    WW

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   02/16/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
18:51:43 Traffic Stop 100 Block of 3RD St, Paonia, PPD PPD CIT
Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   02/17/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
04:09:46 CIVIL PROBLEM PPD PPD
11:38:10 Wanted Person

Address
OAK AVE, Paonia, CO
SAMUEL WADE RD; \, 
Paonia, CO

PPD PPD CAA

21:49:53 ANIMAL PROBLEM ALDER DR, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   02/18/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
13:23:08 CRIM MISCHIEF

Address
4TH ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   02/19/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
09:06:51 ANIMAL CONTROL GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD UTL
Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   02/20/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
18:25:29 AGENCY ASSIST HIGHWAY 133; Delicious orchards, Hotchkiss,

CO
PPD DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

28



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 2 of 3

rplwlitr.x1

Date Occurred:   02/21/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
15:53:45 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
17:31:40 CIVIL PROBLEM PPD PPD
19:04:13 AGENCY ASSIST

Address
GRAND AVE; PPD, Paonia, CO 
MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO Highway 
133mm, Paonia, PPD DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   02/22/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
15:05:16 WILDLIFE PPD DIST3

23:23:09 AGENCY ASSIST

Address
GUNNISON MOUNTAIN LN, 
Paonia, CO
OAK AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   02/23/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
11:59:52 Information PPD PPD
19:32:22 Traffic Stop PPD PPD CIT
21:29:23 Traffic Stop

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
1200 BLOCK of 2ND STREET, Paonia, 
200 BLOCK OF MAIN AVENUE, Paonia, PPD PPD WW

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   02/24/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
18:04:38 CIVIL PROBLEM paonia, , PPD
19:55:43 TRESPASS PPD PPD
21:26:09 SUSPICIOUS

2ND ST, Paonia, CO  
3RD ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD VW

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   02/25/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
16:08:30 Traffic Stop PPD CIT
16:49:21 AGENCY ASSIST

50 Block of SAMUEL WADE RD, Paonia, CO PPD 
CHICKORY RD; reporting at PPD, PPD 
Hotchkiss, CO

DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   02/26/19
Time Nature
06:56:03 WILDLIFE

Address
RIO GRANDE AVE, Paonia, CO

Agency Loctn Dsp 
PPD PPD 

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   02/27/19

29



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 3 of 3

Report Includes:
All dates between `00:00:01 02/15/19` and `00:00:01 03/01/19`, All agencies matching `PPD`, All disposition's, All natures,
All location codes, All cities

rplwlitr.x1

Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
16:09:10 Code Enforce 400 BLOCK OF DELTA AVENUE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD WW
16:35:17 Code Enforce 400 BLOCK OF DELTA AVE., Paonia, CO PPD PPD WW
Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   02/28/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
15:49:16 TRESPASS PPD PPD VW
16:12:37 CIVIL PROBLEM

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia,
PAN AMERICAN AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Total reported: 28 VW=2, WW= 4, CIT= 3, CAA=1, UTL= 1

30



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 8, 2019 
 

 

Treasurer’s Report 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

31



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 8, 2019 
 

 

Disbursements 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

32



33



34



35



36



37



38



COPIED DIRECT FROM PERSONNEL HANDBOOK - CF 
 

  202 ACCESS TO PERSONNEL FILES  

 

Effective Date: 6/01/2018 Revision Date: 

The Town maintains a personnel file on each employee. The personnel file includes such information as 

the employee's job application, resume, records of training, documentation of performance appraisals 

and salary increases, and other employment records. 

 

Personnel files are the property of the Town, and access to the information they contain is restricted, 

subject to the Colorado Open Records Act. Generally, only supervisors and management personnel of 

the Town who have a legitimate reason to review information in a file are allowed to do so. All 

personnel records are maintained in compliance with the laws related to public records. No documents 

shall be released from a personnel record, except as required by the Open Records Act, without a 

written request from the employee designating the documents to be released and the person or entity 

to which the release is to be made, and indemnifying and holding harmless the Town from liability, 

claims, and demands resulting from such release. 

 

Employees who wish to review their own file should contact the Town Clerk. With reasonable advance 

notice, employees may review their own personnel files, except for any previous employer 

recommendations or references contained therein, in the Town's offices and in the presence of a Town 

representative. An employee shall have the opportunity to submit a letter to the file, responding to or 

rebutting information contained in his/her file. 

 

 

  209 MEDICAL INFORMATION PRIVACY  

 

Effective Date: 6/01/2018 Revision Date: 

The Town is committed to maintaining and protecting the confidentiality of our employees' personal 

information in compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA). The 

Town Clerk is the designated Privacy Officer for all employee medical information. 

 

 

 

39



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 6, 2019 
 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: 397 Clark Avenue A – Special Use 

Summary:   

The Board of Trustees public hearing  

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

40



 

 
  

MARCH 06, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

March 06, 2019 
 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission held Wednesday, March 6, 2019, was called 

to order at 6:01 PM by Chairperson Barbara Heck, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Roll Call: 

Commission members present were as follows: 

 

Barbara Heck 

Lucy Hunter 

Bill Bear 

Charles Stewart 

 

Absent commission members were as follows: 

Monica Foguth 

 

Town Staff present were as follows: 

 

Administrator Ken Knight 

Deputy Clerk Amanda Mojarro 

 

A quorum was present, and Chairperson Barb Heck proceeded with the meeting. 

 

Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion by Mr. Stewart, supported by Ms. Hunter to approve the agenda as presented. Motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

Unfinished Business 
 

Minutes – February 5, 2019 

 

Motion by Ms. Hunter, supported by Mr. Bear to accept the planning commission minutes for – 

February 5, 2019, as presented. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Special Use Permit - Zimmer - 397 Clark Avenue # A 
Chairperson Barbara Heck opened the meeting to discuss, Mr. Zimmer’s special use permit to 

manufacture pottery at - 397 Clark Avenue # A.  

 

Administrator Knight read off the administrator notes, informing the planning commission 

members regarding the business that was happening in the residential area at 397 Clark Avenue # 

A.  

  

Points Informed to Committee: 

● I-1 zone requires a special use permit. 

● Duration of the manufacturing of the pottery not being recognizable. 

● Tenant advertised on Facebook a pottery one-day class. 

● The town became aware and informed owner of the requirement that needed to be met. 

  

 

Discussion ensued the potential impact in the air and water quality, due to potential use of toxic 

materials during the manufacturing process of pottery. 

41



 

 
  

MARCH 06, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 2 

 

 

Mr. Zimmer communicated to the committee members that he is not familiar with the process 

and assured that the air and water quality is considered not to be impacted. Jasmine tenant at 397 

Clark Avenue # A communicated to the committee members there are no toxic materials being 

used in the process of manufacturing pottery and clay traps have been placed. 

 

Motion by Mr. Stewart withdrawn by Mr. Stewart to recommend to the Board of Trustees 

approval of the special use permit to manufacture pottery at 397 Clark Avenue # A. Motion 

carried unanimously 

 

Motion by Mr. Stewart supported by Mr. Bear to recommend to the Board of Trustees approval 

of the artistic manufacturing of pottery at 397 Clark Avenue # A. Motion carried unanimously 

 

Discussion ensued with much deliberation regarding traffic at 397 Clark Avenue # A and the 

impact in the surrounding residential area would have.  

 

Traffic Impact Discussion Points: 

● Curve cut off warehouse B concerns 

● Heavy traffic on Minnesota Rd. and Clark Rd 

● Two-way traffic between Minnesota Rd and Clark Rd 

● Protection and maintenance of the East side of the Minnesota Rd sidewalk 

●  Emplace a traffic control sign  

 

Discussion ensued regarding the times and how often workshops will be conducted at 397 Clark 

Avenue # A warehouses. Mr. Zimmer communicated the time of these workshops would be 

during evenings and weekends. The warehouse contains (5) five kiln wheels, the use of these 

wheels is (1) one person per kiln wheel a total of (5) five people attending the workshop.  

 

Motion by Mr. Stewart, supported by Mr. Bear to recommend to the Board of Trustees the 

approval of a workshop limit of (5) five students (3) three times per month. Motion carried 

unanimously 

 

Discussion ensued concern regarding the retail sales use in an area zoned industrial with 

residential use, containing commercial activities.  

  

Discussion Points: 

 Kiln opening parties 

● Creating a retail center 

● The frequency of retail sales 

 

Motion by Mr. Bear supported by Mr. Stewart to recommend to the Board of Trustees approval 

of an approach apron and traffic control sign at the intersection of Minnesota Avenue curb cut. 

Motion carried unanimously 

 

Motion by Mr. Stewart supported by Ms. Hunter to recommend to the Board of Trustees 

approval of limited retail sales activity with limits being determined by the Board of Trustees. 

Motion carried unanimously 

 

Adjournment 
 

Motion by Mr. Stewart supported by Mr. Bear to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

The meeting was adjourned by Ms. Heck at 6:54 pm 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                         Barbara Heck, Chairperson  

 

 

42



 

 
  

MARCH 06, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

43



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 06, 2019 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 

6:00 PM 
 

 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 
1. Planning Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 
2. Agenda Approval 

Unfinished Business 
3. Minutes – February 5, 2019 

4. Special Use Permit – Zimmer – 397 Clark Avenue #A  

Adjournment 
5. Adjournment 

  

44



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 4, 2019 
 

Agenda Item # CALL

 

Planning Roll Call 

Summary:   
Meeting opening -  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vote: Barb Heck: Bill Bear: Monica Foguth:  

Lucy Hunter: Charles Stewart:  

 

 

 

 
 

 

45



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 4, 2019 
 

Agenda Item # CALL

 

Agenda Approval 

Summary:   
Meeting opening -  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vote: Barb Heck: Bill Bear: Monica Foguth:  

Lucy Hunter: Charles Stewart:  

 

 

 

 
 

 

46



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 4, 2019 
 

Agenda Item # CALL

 

Minutes – February 5, 2019 

Summary:   
Meeting opening -  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vote: Barb Heck: Bill Bear: Monica Foguth:  

Lucy Hunter: Charles Stewart:  

 

 

 

 
 

 

47



  

FEBRUARY 05, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

February 5, 2019 
 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission held Tuesday, February 5, 2019, was called to 

order at 6:30 PM by Chairperson Barbara Heck, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Roll Call: 

Commission members present were as follows: 

 

Barbara Heck 

Lucy Hunter 

Bill Bear 

Charles Stewart 

Monica Foguth 

 

Town Staff present were as follows: 

 

Administrator Ken Knight 

Town Clerk Corinne Ferguson 

Deputy Clerk Amanda Mojarro 

 

A quorum was present, and Chairperson Barb Heck proceeded with the meeting. 

 

Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion by Mr. Stewart, supported by Chairperson Barb Heck to approve the agenda as 

presented. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Unfinished Business 
 

Minutes – January 15, 2019 

 

Motion by Mr. Bear, supported by Mr. Stewart to accept the planning commission minutes for – 

January 15, 2019, as presented. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Unfinished Business 

 

Minutes – January 15, 2019 

 

Motion by Mr. Bear, supported by Mr. Stewart to accept the planning commission minutes for – 

January 15,2019, as presented. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Home Occupancy Permit – Knuston – 401 Vista Drive 

 

Chairperson Barbara Heck opened the meeting to discuss Mr. Knutson’s home occupancy permit 

for 401 Vista Dr. 

 

Administrator Knight read the administrator notes to the planning commission there were (2) two 

positive (0) zero negative comments regarding Mr. Knutson’s home occupancy permit. The 

application was received in a timely manner, fees were all paid, publication and notices were all 

met by Mr. Knutson. Mr. Knight communicated that staff reviewed Mr. Knutson’s application, 

there were no issues.  

 

 

 

48



  

FEBRUARY 05, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 2 

 

Discussion ensued concerns with Mr. Knutson’s home occupancy permit for his Human resource 

consulting and executive business at 401 Vista Drive use for office space and client meetings.  

 

 

 

Points of Concern: 

● Parking 

● Hiring an Employee 

● Outside wall mounted business sign 

  

Motion by Ms. Hunter, supported by Mr. Bear to approve with Recommendation to approve Mr. 

Knutson’s Home Occupancy Permit for 401 Vista Drive, by the Town Board.  

 

Special Use Permit - Zimmer - 397 Clark Avenue # A 

Chairperson Barbara Heck continued with next business item, Mr. Zimmer’s special use permit 

to manufacture pottery at - 397 Clark Avenue # A.  

 

Administrator Knight read off the administrator notes to the planning commission regarding Mr. 

Zimmer’s special use permit for making pottery at 397 Clark Avenue # A. Informing that there 

were (0) zero complaints and (0) zero comments. 

  

Mr. Zimmer was absent, and no one was there to represent for the meeting. Town Clerk Corinne 

Ferguson contacted Mr. Zimmer to inform him about the meeting. It was asked by. Mrs. 

Ferguson to continue the meeting in his absence, Mr. Zimmer responded that he was comfortable 

to continue.  

 

Discussion ensued about how manufacturing pottery would have an impact on the surrounding 

neighborhood.  

 

Discussion points: 

● Multiple uses not just manufacturing 

● Requesting to sale as retail 

● Noise while manufacturing pottery 

● Water pollution 

● Traffic and Parking 

 

Public discussion ensued of the health and safety impact regarding Mr. Zimmer’s special permit 

use for the manufacturing of pottery. With (1) one Aye and (2) Nays 

 

Public discussion point: 

● Expanding of gas kilns to the outside 

● The need for a clay trap 

● Gas fumes from the metals and powders that come from the manufacturing of pottery 

 

Traffic flow was a considerable discussion point, Chairperson Barb Heck requested the (2) two 

meeting minutes for Silver Leaf on what the board approved regarding traffic flow. 

 

Mr. Knight informed the planning committee about the cease and desist order that was sent to 

Mr. Zimmer regarding the manufacturing of pottery at 397 Clark Avenue # A, last (2018) year. 

Since then there has been no known manufacturing of the pottery. 

 

Discussion ensued with much deliberation regarding Mr. Zimmer’s special use permit for 

manufacturing pottery at 397 Clark Avenue # A, concluded that Mr. Zimmer’s presence is 

essential in clarifying the manufacturing pottery process.  

 

Motion by Mr. Bear, supported by Mr. Stewart to continue to another date. Motion carried with 

(1) One Nay and (4) Four Ayes. 

 

 Public Notice meeting for March 06, 2019, posting requirements, meeting the timeline of the 

(15) fifteen days and fees must be met and paid in full by Mr. Zimmer. 

 

Adjournment 

49



  

FEBRUARY 05, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 3 

 

 

Motion by Ms. Hunter supported by Mr. Bear to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

The meeting was adjourned by Ms. Heck at 7:16 pm 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                         Barbara Heck, Chairperson  

50



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 4, 2019 
 

Agenda Item # CALL

 

Special Use Permit – Zimmer – 397 Clark Avenue #A  

Summary:   
Meeting opening – Continued from PC meeting 2/5/2019 
 

 

ADMINISTRATOR NOTES: 

 

All manufacturing in the I-1 zone requires a Special Review. It appears that pottery has been 

manufactured within 397 Clark Avenue #A for quite some time  

and it was not noticeable. It was only after the potter advertised on Facebook that pottery was 

available and a one - day class would be held that the Town  

then became aware of the activity. At that time; the owner of the warehouse was informed that 

a Special Review would be required. 

 
CLERK NOTES: 
 
The application was received more than 30 days prior to hearing. 
An outstanding invoice for the rescheduled hearing in the amount of $151.25 
has not been paid (as of 3/4/19). 
All publication and posting requirements were met. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vote: Barb Heck: Bill Bear: Monica Foguth:  

Lucy Hunter: Charles Stewart:  

 

 

 

 
 

 

51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



February 19, 2019

Board of Trustees, Town of Paonia
P.O. Box 460
Paonia, Colorado 81428

RE: Special Review Application – 395 Clark Avenue #A;
Six Month Review

Dear Trustees:

I represent Mr. Cowell and Ms. West concerning the Edesia special use review of the 
warehouse property accessed by Clark Avenue.   On January 22, 2019, the Trustees by
motion requested Mr. Knight to meet with both parties to discuss possible solutions and
report back to the Trustees on February 26, 2019.  

After not hearing from Mr. Knight, undersigned sent an email to Mr. Knight on February 13,
2019, inquiring when the meeting would be held.  Mr. Knight responded right away that he
was working on it.  On February 19, 2019, Mr. Knight let the parties know that he would be
unable to conduct a meeting prior to February 26, 2019.  

Since Mr. Knight has not had an opportunity to hold a meeting between my clients and Ms.
George, my clients request that the six month review of the Edesia special uses be
continued until March 6, 2019.  

Sincerely,

Carol A. Viner

cc: clients

David L. Masters

Carol A. Viner

152  Colorado Avenue Montrose ,  Colorado 8 1401 970-249-2622
www.mastersviner .com

60



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 4, 2019 
 

Agenda Item # CALL

 

Adjournment 

Summary:   
Meeting opening -  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vote: Barb Heck: Bill Bear: Monica Foguth:  

Lucy Hunter: Charles Stewart:  

 

 

 

 
 

 

61



March 7th, 2019 
Dear Planning Committee and Town Board, 
 
On behalf of the members of Paonia Clayworks, thank you for this opportunity to communicate 
our needs and desires regarding our studio space at 397 Clark in Paonia. 
 
The purpose of this letter is to address hopefully all of the questions and concerns raised at the 
Wednesday, March 6th Planning Committee meeting. 
 
MISSION/VISION:  
We are a quiet, 7-member collective of ceramists, artists and teachers. Our vision is to make 
and sell beautiful pottery, be a cultural resource to our community, and learn and grow as artists 
and teachers.  
 
We mostly keep to ourselves, make pottery, and gift or trade with friends and family. We are 
committed to being valuable, considerate neighbors and community members. 
 
STUDIO MEMBERSHIP:  
At present we are a 7-member collective. At any given time, usually less than half the members 
are on-site. Most of the time there is just 1 of us in there. We anticipate growing to 10 to 12 
members, within the next 12-18 months. 
 
BENEFITS WE PROVIDE TO THE COMMUNITY:  

● Convenient work-space for local artist-members to throw/build pottery in 
● Instruction in ceramics for potters of all ages 
● Beautiful, hand-made ceramics for sale/trade/gift 
● Innovative partner with non-profits 
● Resource for ceramics residents of Elsewhere Studios Artist Residency program 
● Experimental works made from locally-sourced clays and glazes 
● Host cutting-edge visiting artists to learn + teach new techniques to our community 

WORKSHOPS/CLASS/EVENTS: 
We are a small space with only 5 wheels and 2 small kilns. We’ll occasionally host small classes 
and workshops. We’ll also host occasional events like kiln-openings and open studios 
(weekends mostly) where we tour the studio and provide work for purchase. Most of these 
events will be held off-hours. 
 
RETAIL: 
With the hosting of kiln-openings and open studio hours, we would have a limited need for 
additional retail hours. However, we would like to reserve the right to open our studio on a 
limited basis for selling our wares. At the planning committee meeting, 8 days per month was 
offered and we think that is fine. 

62



PARKING/TRAFFIC:  
We are aware of the sensitivity of parking/traffic at our location. In the event of a class, event or 
workshop - again, mostly during off-hours - we would proactively take the following measures: 

● Encourage visitors to walk/bike to the class, workshop or event 
● Post clear signage of where parking is OK 
● Ask drivers to enter the parking lot via Minnesota, not Clark 
● Coordinate in advance with neighbors (Frederick, Nalby, John and Mary George) to 

make sure there is space for any additional parking, if anticipated 

IN SUMMARY: 
As we stated above, we are a small, quiet collective. Mostly we just want to make and sell art, 
teach people about ceramics, and learn new techniques that add beauty to our community and 
valley.  
 
Our anticipated growth is organic and limited. We aim to provide tangible benefits to our 
community with the smallest impact possible. 
 
If you have any additional questions or concerns, a few of our members will be at the Tuesday 
(March 13th) meeting. Additionally, you can email Pieter at pietervanwinkle@gmail.com, Karen 
at karengoodaz@gmail.com, or Jasmine at jasmineholthausen@gmail.com. 
 
Thank you for your attention to this matter!  
 
Warm regards,  
Paonia Clayworks 

63



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 6, 2019 
 

 

Revised Preliminary Environmental Assessment for the North Fork 

Mancos Master Development Plan 

Summary:   

Discussion requested by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout - Opening discussion and public input 

regarding the revised EA.  

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

64



65



66



NFMMDP:	What’s	Changed?	
	
Issue	 Original	Project	 2019	Update	
Fracking	Method	 Nitrogen	Foam-Gel	 Slickwater	
Water	Consumption	 5.8	Acre-Feet/well	 67.3	Acre	Feet/well	
Water	Source	 n/a	 Various	Sources:	

• City	of	Delta	
• Elk	Creek	Mine	
• “Open	River”	water	
on	Muddy/West	
Muddy	Creek	
• Recycled	Water	from	
CBM	wells	
• Unspecified	Sources	
for	Years	3-4	

Sand	Use	 n/a	 Slickwater	fracking	
requires	sand	as	the	
proppant.	A	total	amount	
was	not	supplied	in	the	EA	

Water/Sand	
Transportation	

n/a	 Water	will	be	transported	
by	a	combination	of	trucks	
and	pipelines.	The	water	
purchased	from	the	City	of	
Delta	will	all	be	hauled	by	
truck	to	a	loadout	near	
Somerset.	

	
Sand	will	by	hauled	by	
some	as-yet-to-be-
specified	combination	of	
truck	and	rail	from	Fruita.	
	
Overall	traffic	at	its	peak	
as	the	result	of	these	
changes	would	increase	
traffic	on	Hwy	133	by	
23%	at	the	project’s	peak.	

	

67



North	Fork	Mancos	Master	Development	Plan	
Fact	Sheet	–	March	2019	

	
Gunnison	Energy’s	North	Fork	Mancos	Master	Development	Plan	(NFMMDP)	is	BACK.	In	
2017,	the	company	proposed	to	drill,	frack,	and	operate	up	to	35	new	wells	in	the	Upper	
North	Fork	watershed	about	12	miles	northeast	of	Paonia.	The	project	was	on	hold	for	much	
of	last	year	as	the	company	tested	possible	fracking	methods,	and	they	have	chosen	to	
proceed	with	a	much	more	water-intensive	process	than	was	originally	proposed.	
	
The	Project	-	Background:		

• 34,906-acre	project	on	mostly	public	lands.		
• 35	new	wells	from	4	new	well	pads	and	one	existing	pad.	
• Adjacent	to	the	recently	approved	146-well	Bull	Mountain	MDP.	
• The	project	would	be	developed	over	4	years.		

	
The	Project	-	New	Information	

• The	updated	proposal	would	use	67.3-acre	feet	(or	nearly	22,000,000	gallons)	of	water	
for	each	well.	

• The	total	estimated	water	use	for	the	entire	project	is	2,355.5-acre	feet.	(or	roughly	
767,000,000	gallons).	

• Water	would	come	from	a	variety	of	sources:	
o Fresh	water	from	the	Muddy	Creek/West	Muddy	Creek	when	available,	
o The	West	Elk	Mine’s	water	right,	
o The	City	of	Delta,	
o Recycled/produced	water	from	other	oil	and	gas	operations,	including	Coal	Bed	

Methane	(CBM)	wells.	
• The	new	fracking	method	would	also	require	a	significant	amount	of	sand	to	prop	up	

the	newly	formed	fractures.	
	
Issues:	

v The	amount	of	water	for	the	project	is	roughly	equal	to	20%	of	the	capacity	of	the	
Paonia	Reservoir.	The	water	system	in	the	North	Fork	Valley	is	already	highly	
stressed.	Withdrawing	that	much	water	is	incompatible	with	the	other,	existing	
uses	in	the	area.	

v Delivering	so	much	water	to	the	project	area	would	require	a	significant	increase	
in	truck	traffic	from	Delta	to	Somerset.	

v The	project	would	require	hauling	sand	in	trucks	from	Fruita	(about	50	round	
trips	per	day	over	50-60	days)	from	the	Elk	Creek	Mine	to	the	well	pads.		

v The	NFMMDP	is	adjacent	to	the	146-Well	Bull	Mountain	Master	Development	
Plan		

v East	Muddy	Creek,	West	Muddy	Creek,	Hubbard	Creek-North	Fork	Gunnison	
River	Watersheds,	which	feed	some	of	the	North	Fork	Valley’s	most	important	
irrigation	and	drinking	water	sources,	are	at	risk.	

v The	project	is	proposed	in	one	of	the	most	geologically	unstable	regions	in	the	
State,	which	witnessed	the	largest	mudslide	in	the	country,	and	Hwy	133	has	
regular	problems	with	rockfalls.	

v There	are	already	injection	wells	in	the	area	that	may	be	correlated	with	recent	
earthquakes	near	Carbondale	(2.8	magnitude	on	January	19th,	2017	28	km	S	of	

68



North	Fork	Mancos	Master	Development	Plan	
Fact	Sheet	–	March	2019	

	
Carbondale;	1.6	magnitude	on	January	19th	26	km	S	of	Carbondale)	and	Paonia	
(3.5	magnitude	on	July	23,	2016	7	km	NE	of	Paonia).		

v Wildlife	and	Game	Management	Unit	521	is	at	risk.	This	area	is	part	of	a	popular,		
heavily	used,	and	highly	prized	hunting	area,	and	includes	critical	habitat	for	
Colorado’s	elk	and	deer	herds.		

v Rural	gas	gathering	pipelines	are	exempt	from	federal	pipeline	safety	
regulations.	

v This	project	is	the	first	phase	of	a	potential	104-well,	13-pad	development	by	
GELLC	within	the	NFMMDP	project	area,	for	which	detailed	planning	and	analysis	
are	currently	unavailable.	

	
BLM	and	the	US	Forest	Service	are	seeking	comments	from	the	public	to	identify	concerns	and	
issues	before	they	begin	drafting	the	environmental	assessment	analyzing	the	proposal.	The	
comment	deadline	is	now	April	1,	2019.		
	
Send	comments	to	the	BLM	and	USFS:	

v Stating	that	this	application	is	incomplete	until	the	operator	can	demonstrate	a	source	
for	all	the	water	to	be	used	in	this	project,	and	conducting	an	EA	without	that	
information	is	premature	and	invalid.		

v Requesting	that	no	new	development	until	federal	resource	management	planning	is	
revised	to	properly	protect	the	resources	of	the	North	Fork	Valley.	Any	new	
development	during	the	resource	planning	revision	process	now	underway	for	the	
Uncompahgre	Field	Office	Planning	Area	and	the	USFS’	Grand	Mesa,	Uncompahgre,	and	
Gunnison	National	Forests,	prejudices	the	cumulative	impacts	analysis	required	by	the	
National	Environmental	Policy	Act.	

v Requesting	a	full	Environmental	Impact	Statement	instead	of	the	currently	proposed	
Environmental	Assessment.	The	proposed	project	is	complex,	impacts	3	critical	
watersheds	of	the	North	Fork	Valley,	is	proposed	in	one	of	the	most	geologically	
unstable	areas	in	the	State	and	with	recent	earthquake	activity	that	may	be	related	to	
existing	injection	wells,	and	is	adjacent	to	the	146-Well	Bull	Mountain	Master	
Development	Plan,	which	was	also	subject	to	a	full	Environmental	Impact	Assessment.	
This	alone	merits	a	full	Environmental	Impact	Assessment.	
	

You	can	send	your	comments	to:	
	
Allen	Crockett	
Bureau	of	Land	Management	
2300	River	Frontage	Road	
Silt,	CO	81652	
or	email	comments	to	
blm_co_si_mail@blm.gov		
or	fax	to	(970)	876-9090	

Niccole	Mortenson	
Grand	Mesa	Uncompahgre	and	Gunnison	
National	Forest	All	Units	
2250	Highway	550,	Delta,	CO,	81416	
nmortenson@fs.fed.us	
	

	

69



	

	
	
	
	
	 	
	

 
 
 
March 8, 2019 
 
Board of Trustees for the Town of Paonia 
P.O. Box 460 
214 Grand Avenue 
Paonia, CO 81428 
 
Dear Trustees for the Town of Paonia, 
 
Citizens for a Healthy Community (CHC) is a 500+ member grassroots nonprofit organization 
dedicated to protecting the air, water and foodsheds of the North Fork Valley and the Delta 
County region.  CHC continues to be concerned about the impacts of oil and gas development 
in the Upper North Fork Valley watersheds and impacts on the Town of Paonia. In May of 2018, 
the Town of Paonia submitted a very strong series comments to the Bureau of Land 
Management (BLM) on the Preliminary Environmental Assessment for the North Fork Mancos 
Master Development Plan (NFMMDP), addressing issues related to potential impact on a range 
of resources.  
 
Now, Gunnison Energy, LLC (the project proponent), has brought the project back to the BLM 
for further review after proposing major changes to the hydraulic fracturing method. 
Originally, the project proposed to use the nitrogen foam/gel method, but that proved to be 
unfeasible in the project area for a variety of reasons. The company has now proposed to change 
to the slickwater method, which is dramatically more water-intensive. Where the nitrogen foam 
method would use 5.8 acre-feet of water per well, the slickwater method will require 67.3 acre-
feet per well. An acre-foot is 325,851 gallons. The entire project would now require 2,355.5 acre-
feet or slightly over 767,000,000 gallons of water. The slickwater method also requires sand as a 
proppant, to hold up the newly formed fractures in the target formation. 
 
The water for this project will come from a variety of sources, both tributary and non-tributary. 
Tributary water is water that contributes to stream flows in the Gunnison River Subbasin. Non-
tributary water does not. Tributary sources include Muddy Creek and West Muddy Creek 
water diverted during open river periods (Colorado Water Commissioner must approve these 
withdrawals), water from the Elk Creek Mine water right, and finally they have purchased 34 
acre-feet per year for the first two years of the project from the City of Delta (this water will be 
hauled by trucks from Delta to a loading point near Somerset).  
 
Non-tributary sources will be recycled produced water from coalbed methane (CBM) wells in 
the area. While the BLM is treating water from CBM wells as “non-tributary,” implying that 

70



there will be no impact on surface water, there are still serious concerns about groundwater 
depletions. This issue has come up in the Delta County oil and gas working group discussions, 
as concern about the connection between groundwater and surface flows grows. 
 
In years 3 and 4 of the project, there is a 368.5 acre-foot short fall in Gunnison Energy’s water 
supply. The Revised Preliminary Environmental Assessment (REA) describes this water as 
“Currently Unsecured Additional Sources.” This unsecured water cannot come from tributary 
sources, as there is a 2017 US Fish and Wildlife Service Programmatic Biological Opinion 
safeguarding endangered fish species that limits the total amount of North Fork water that can 
be withdrawn for energy development. Current oil and gas development in the upper North 
Fork is pushing up against the limits of this safeguard. More importantly, the fact that this 
revised fracking method requires 34 acre-feet of water to be trucked from the City of Delta 
beginning in Year 1 of the project demonstrates that there isn’t enough water locally to support 
this project.  
 
This increased water use, as well as new need for hauling sand, and water from the City of 
Delta, has forced the BLM to reanalyze the project. The REA is largely similar to the original 
Preliminary EA that you have already commented on, with a few notable changes that reflect 
the updated project. The REA does in some places attempt to address some of the issues raised 
in earlier comments, but largely remains unchanged. 
 
The BLM is now asking for your input on the REA.   
 
We sincerely appreciate your willingness to address these issues, and the work that you have 
done thus far. We respectfully request that you submit a letter to the BLM that reiterates the 
comments you have previously submitted, and addresses the following issues: 
 
• Impact on Town of permanently withdrawing 2,335.5 acre-feet from the hydrologic cycle 

o Paonia is currently living through evidence of the fragility of our water systems. While 
the current water emergency was not caused by oil and gas operations, it is clear proof 
of how little room for error there is on an over-allocated, drought-stricken hydrologic 
system.  

o Water used for drilling wells and fracking them is never returned to the hydrologic 
cycle. It is either reused in future fracking efforts or stored forever deep down in 
wastewater disposal wells. While the water used from the Muddy and West Muddy 
Creeks, and potential groundwater depletions from coaled methane wells, does not 
supply the Town of Paonia water system, it does supply irrigators in the valley, and 
residents who rely on various ditches and canals for water supply. Permanently 
withdrawing the water threatens these residents and agricultural businesses, and 
therefore Paonia’s economy. At least half of Paonia’s economy relies on the water 
coming from the watersheds impacted by this project. Any stresses to surrounding 
source waters is likely to result in a burden on the Town’s already strained systems.  

o The REA describes a 2017 programmatic Biological Opinion, produced by the US Fish 
and Wildlife Service and the US Forest Service, that limits the amount of water that can 
be withdrawn from the Gunnison Subbasin for energy development to 607 acre-feet 
annually. This limit is set to preserve adequate instream flows for the endangered and 
threatened species in the river system. Maintaining adequate instream flows for 
threatened and endangered species is also critical for the outfitters, guides, and 

71



recreation businesses that rely on those same instream flows to support sport fishing all 
along the North Fork and its tributaries.  

• Impact on Town of increased truck traffic for hauling both water and sand 
o The REA anticipates significant increases in traffic through Paonia as a part of this 

project. On the stretch of highway from just east of Hotchkiss all the way through 
Paonia, the project would result in a 63% increase in daily truck traffic. Further east of 
town, that increase would be well over 100%.  

o The BLM does not adequately address the safety concerns associated with such drastic 
increases in traffic. The REA relies on conditions of approval that require operators to 
follow all applicable traffic rules to mitigate any potential impact. The Hwy 133 corridor 
is already the second most dangerous route in the state of Colorado, as a result of the 
significant geohazards, rock falls, and mudslides that occur on a regular basis. 
Significantly increasing the amount of traffic in this corridor will likely increase accident 
rates and stress local emergency response teams, and adversely impact their ability o 
respond to other local emergencies.  

o This significant increase in heavy truck traffic will have a negative impact on the road 
surface.  

• Importance of fully understanding all possible sources of water for this project 
o As was discussed briefly above, Gunnison Energy has not yet secured the rights to all 

the water required for this project. In years 3 and 4, there is a 368.5 acre-foot annual 
shortfall. This is likely the result of the programmatic Biological Opinion discussed 
above that limits the total amount of water that can be withdrawn from the Gunnison 
Subbasin for energy purposes. That means that Gunnison Energy will have to find non-
tributary water to supply its needs. Where will that water come from? How can the BLM 
properly analyze the impact of this water use if it does not know where the water will 
come from? 

o 368.5 acre-feet is a significant amount of water. Trucking that amount of water through 
Paonia would require nearly 12,000 truck trips, ten times what is currently being 
considered. Transporting it via pipeline would require the installation of many miles of 
temporary, above-ground pipeline in addition to what is contemplated in this REA.  

o The BLM cannot consider development impacts that haven’t been defined. That makes 
this application, and this REA not only incomplete but premature. With this REA, the 
BLM and Gunnison Energy are gambling with the upper North Fork’s water future, 
which is already in peril under the pressures of drought, climate change, and likely 
sacrifices to support Colorado’s Drought Contingency, and Demand Management Plans. 
The scope of water use for this project alone is great enough to merit an Environmental 
Impact Statement to understand fully the long-term implications of this scale of water 
withdrawals.  

 
In addition to the above concerns, we ask that you reiterate the issues raised by the Town in 
previous comments, particularly the request that the agency conduct an Environmental Impact 
Statement. Given the sheer amount of water needed, the recent approval of the 146-well Bull 
Mountain Master Development Plan, a potential second phase of the NFMMDP, and the extent 
of the existing natural gas infrastructure, and unregulated pipelines and the number of oil and 
gas industry exemptions from environmental laws and regulations, an Environmental Impact 
Statement is necessary to analyze properly the potential cumulative impacts to and the carrying 
capacity of the region.  
 

72



In addition, a moratorium on new development during an ongoing Resource Management Plan 
(RMP) revision process is required under the National Environmental Policy Act. The BLM is 
currently revising its Resource Management Plan for the Uncompahgre Planning Area, and the 
US Forest Service is currently undergoing a Forest Revision Plan. The project area in question 
was leased under an outdated RMP, and moving forward with development would prejudice 
the RMP revision process and would significantly impact the environment. 
 
Please see the attachments for additional information. If the Board of Trustees has any questions 
or would like any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me at 
andrew@chc4you.org or at (970) 399-9700. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Andrew Forkes-Gudmundson 
Associate Program Director 
Citizens for a Healthy Community 
 
Attachments: 
 

• NFMMDP: What’s Changed? 
• North Fork Mancos Master Development Plan Factsheet 
• Map: Hydrologic Units NFMMDP 

 

73



Sheep
Gathering System

T 10 S
T 11 S

T 11 S
T 12 S

R
 9

1 
W

R
 9

0 
W

R
 9

0 
W

R
 8

9 
W

Option 2 Access

Option 1 Access

D
el

ta
G

un
ni

so
n

Hubb
ar d Canyon

R
d

Clear Fork
R

d

133

133

503.1

851

704

844

265

West Muddy Creek

DGU 1289
#20-23

SPU Federal
1190 #20

SPU Federal
1190 #29

TGU Federal
1090 #30

IPU 1291
#13-24

3136

31

36 31

6
6 1

16

36 31
36

3131

6
1

1

6

6

3136
31

3136

61616

Hubbard Creek
Spring Creek

Au
lt 

C
re

ek

East

W
illow

C
reek

Hayes
Creek

Drift
 C

re
ek

Dugout Creek

Buzzard Creek

North
Bainard

CreekGold Creek

Bear Creek

East Fork

Terror

Creek
De

ep
Cr

ee
k

Elk Creek

Middle

Hubbard

Creek

Cl
ea

r F
or

k

Coal Creek

Bas
in

Cree
k

Chair Creek

Big Alder Creek

Jones Creek

O
wens Creek

Le
e Cree

k

Dexter
Creek

West Muddy Creek

Sp
rin

g C
re

ek

M
ain

Hubbard

Creek
West

Hubbard

Creek

Ro
be

rts
 C

re
ek

DryOwens

Creek

Baldy Creek

Little Henderson Creek

East M
uddy Creek

Sl
id

e 
C

re
ek

Be
ar

 C
re

ek

Little

Muddy

Creek

Crooked Creek

R
ange C

reek

Cow Creek

Little
Alder
Creek

Beaver Creek

Dyke Creek

June Creek

Gooseberry
 Creek

W
illo

w 
Cr

ee
k

Second Creek

Sh
ee

p 
C

re
ek

Cottonwood Creek

So
uth

Ba
ina

rd
Cre

ek

Willow Creek

North Fork Little

Henderson Creek

Spring Creek

Trail C
reek

Crane Creek

Deadhorse
 Creek

Buck Creek

Turner Creek

Coal Creek

He
nd

er
so

n 
Cr

ee
k

No warranty is made by the Bureau of Land Management
for use of the data for purposes not intended by the BLM

105

Map 11

Hydrologic Units

2 0 2
Miles

Legend
Proposed Well Pad (Proposed Action)
Expanded Well Pad (Proposed Action)
Existing Well Pad (Proposed Action)

Access Roads
Existing
Existing - To Be Upgraded
To Be Constructed

Pipelines/Gathering Pipelines
Bull Mountain
Existing Gathering Pipeline
Proposed Gathering Pipeline
Deadman Gulch Federal Unit
Iron Point Federal Unit
Sheep Park II Federal Unit
Trail Gulch Federal Unit
NFMMDP Project Area
Named Streams and Rivers

Hydrologic Units
Bear Creek-North Fork Gunnison River
Clear Fork East Muddy Creek
Little Henderson Creek-East Muddy Creek
Little Muddy Creek
Outlet Hubbard Creek
Outlet West Muddy Creek
Paonia Reservoir

Gunnison Energy LLC
North Fork Mancos Master Development Plan

DOI-BLM-CO-N040-2017-0050-EA

74



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 8, 2019 
 

 

Finance & Personnel 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

75



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 8, 2019 
 

 

Public Works/Utilities/Facilities 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

76



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 8, 2019 
 

 

Governmental Affairs/Public Safety 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

77



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 8, 2019 
 

 

Space to Create 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

78



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 8, 2019 
 

 

Space to Create 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

79



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 6, 2019 
 

 

Town Administrator Review 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

80



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 8, 2019 
 

 

Adjournment 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

81


	Top
	5. Consent Agenda
	ASF - Consent Agenda.docx
	0212.docx
	0226.docx
	WSCC - SEP Application_Redacted.pdf

	7. Admin Report Water System Update
	ASF - Admin Water Update.docx

	12. Unfinished Business - Personnel Handbook
	Personnel Handbook Amendment Discussion.docx

	13. Public Hearing
	ASF - Public Hearing - 397 Clark.docx
	3-06-19 Planning Minutes Draft-1.docx
	Planning Commission Meeting Packet Document - Public.pdf
	Paonia Clayworks - Town Board Letter.pdf

	14. New Business - Revised EA for North Fork
	ASF - Revised EA Discussion.docx
	Revised EA Link.pdf
	NFMMDP_What Changed.pdf
	Factsheet_NFMMDP Update_FINAL.pdf
	2019 Letter to Paonia Trustees_NFMMDP REA_FINAL.pdf
	Map_Hydrologic-Units_NFMMDP.pdf

	20. TA Review
	ASF - Executive Session Town Admin Review.docx

	Bottom

